
 
 
City of Lake Alfred  Phone:  (863) 291‐5270 
120 E. Pomelo Street  Fax: (863) 291‐5317 
Lake Alfred, FL  33850    www.mylakealfred.com 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, AUGUST 17, 2015 

7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 

 
CALL TO ORDER: MAYOR CHARLES LAKE 
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  TBD 

ROLL CALL: CITY CLERK AMEÉ BAILEY 
 
CITY MANAGER & CITY ATTORNEY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS: ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA 
 

PROCLAMATION – CIVILITY MONTH 
EMPLOYEE SERVICE RECOGNITION: JUAN LOPEZ – 5 YEARS 
GIRL SCOUTS OF WEST CENTRAL FLORIDA PRESENTATION 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

 
1.) CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AUGUST 3, 2015 CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

MINUTES. 
2.) CITY COMMISSION ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
AGENDA 

 
1.) RESOLUTION 06-15: WAYFINDING SIGNAGE EVALUATION AND CRITERIA 
2.) EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT 2015/2016 
3.) BID PROPOSAL: RESIDENTIAL RECYCLE COLLECTION SERVICES 
4.) BID PROPOSAL: BUCHANAN BUILDING DEMO AND PROPERTY OPTIONS 

 
RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS (PLEASE LIMIT YOUR COMMENTS TO 5 MINUTES.)   
 
COMMISSIONER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS: 
 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY 
MAYOR LAKE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN 
 
ADJOURN 



 
 

 

Proclamation 
To recognize August 2015 as Civility Month which was created to remind people of the importance 
of protecting our water supplies.   
 
WHEREAS, the open exchange of public discourse is essential to the democratic system of 
government; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a cornerstone of democracy Americans have observed certain rules of behavior 
generally known as civility which is an integral component of a productive, functioning society in 
which all people are treated as equals regardless of age, gender, religion, racial or ethnic 
background, or creed; and 
 
WHEREAS, civility, derived from the Latin words “civitas” meaning city and “civis” meaning 
citizen, is behavior worthy of citizens living in a community or in common with others; and 
 
WHEREAS, displays of anger, rudeness, ridicule, impatience, lack of respect, and personal 
attacks detract from the open exchange of ideas, prevent fair discussion of the issues and can 
discourage individuals from participation in government; and 
 
WHEREAS, civility can assist in reaching consensus on diverse issues and allow for mutually 
respectful ongoing relationships; and 
  
WHEREAS, civility can uplift our daily life and make it more pleasant to live in an organized 
society; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City, County, and Local Government Law Section of the Florida Bar urges the 
adoption of a pledge of civility by all citizens in the State of Florida. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Lake Alfred formally recognize August 2015 as 
 

"Civility Month" 
 

in the City of Lake Alfred and urges all citizens to exercise civility toward each other. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunder set my hand this 17th day of August, 2015. 
 
 
                         

Charles O. Lake, Mayor 
      City of Lake Alfred, Florida 
 



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 17, 2015 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

1.) AUGUST 3, 2015 CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Draft Minutes 
 

ANALYSIS:  Please review the minutes at your earliest convenience and if there are any 
questions, comments or concerns please contact the City Clerk, Ameé Bailey at (863) 291-
5747. 
 

 
 

2.) CITY COMMISSION ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
ANALYSIS:  Each of the meetings scheduled below may constitute a public meeting at which 
two or more City Commissioners or Planning Board Members may attend and discuss issues 
that may come before the City Commissioners.    
 

 The Lake Alfred Chamber Lunch will be held on Wednesday August 19, 2015 at 12:00 
pm at the Cornerstone Grill in Lake Alfred. 

 The Ridge League of Cities Membership Meeting will be held on Thursday September 10 
at 6:30 pm at the Winter Haven Chain of Lakes Complex. (210 Cypress Gardens Blvd. 
SW, Winter Haven- North Entrance) 

 
 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the consent agenda 
 
 



DRAFT 
Page 1 of 10 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
CITY OF LAKE ALFRED 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, AUGUST 3, 2015 

7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 

 
Call to Order: Mayor Charles Lake 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance: Pastor Mike Jones 
 
Roll Call: Those in attendance were Mayor Charles Lake, Vice Mayor Nancy Daley, 
Commissioner John Duncan, Commissioner Jack Dearmin, Commissioner Albertus Maultsby, 
City Manager Ryan Leavengood, Assistant City Attorney Seth Claytor, and City Clerk Ameé 
Bailey.   
 
Staff attendance: Public Works Director John Deaton, Finance Director Amber Deaton, 
Community Development Director Valerie Ferrell, Fire Chief Chris Costine, Police Chief Art 
Bodenheimer, and Parks and Recreation Superintendent Richard Weed. 
 

CITY MANAGER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated that Mackay Gardens and Lakeside Preserve will host a free 
community gardening workshop on August 6th at 10 am, a guided nature walk on August 8th at 
8 am, and Astronomy Night on August 15th from 7-10 pm.  Contact the Parks and Recreation 
Department for more details or to sign-up for one of these events.   
 
The tax free school supply days will be August 7th – 16th then students return to public schools 
on Monday, August 24, 2015.    
 
The SPCA Wellness Wagon will be at the Lake Alfred Public Library on August 8th from 8 till 
10:30 am, offering vaccines, heartworm testing & deworming for every pet without the cost of a 
vet visit.  Then the Mobile Career Source will visit on Tuesday, Aug 11th from 9 am till 3 pm to 
aide in job searches, resume writing, or interviewing skills. 
 
The Lake Alfred Library is also hosting a Back to School Carnival on Thursday, August 20th 
from 6 pm till 8 pm.  The event will be held on the Lake Alfred tennis courts across the street 
from the library.  Please join staff for carnival games, face painting & lots of fun!   
 
As a reminder the City Commission dates in September have been changed to the 2nd and 4th 
Wednesday of the month (September 9th and 23rd) to meet the Florida Statue requirement for 
the annual budget hearings.   
 
A Commission Announcement section was added to the consent agenda, which lists public 
meeting at which two or more City Commissioners or Planning Board Members may appear to 
discuss issues that may come before the City Commissioners.  The current events include the 



DRAFT 
Page 2 of 10 

 

Water Summit on August 10th at Lake Eva in Haines City and the Florida League of Cities 
Annual Conference. 
 
Vice Mayor Daley asked if the announcement items should be read otherwise how the public 
will know what is on the list.  
 
Mayor Lake asked if Vice Mayor Daley was asking if the announcements should be listed in 
another location. 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated that the agenda is a public document that is available to the 
public and meets the notice requirements for the Commissioners attending different events.  
This is a step towards more openness since they were not listed before.  Typical items such as 
the Chamber events and the Ridge League of Cities events which are also covered in the City 
Manager Announcements.   
 
City Clerk Ameé Bailey stated the announcements are also on the website. 
 

 
CITY ATTORNEY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
No announcements.  
 

RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS 
 
There were no citizen statements. 
 
PROCLAMATION:  WATER QUALITY MONTH 
 
Mayor Lake read the proclamation for the August as Water Quality Month.  The proclamation 
urged all citizens to evaluate the impact of their individual household and business and to take 
steps toward protecting and conserving water in our community. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Commissioner Maultsby moved to approve the consent agenda (minutes and 
announcements); seconded by Commissioner Dearmin and the motion was approved by 
unanimous voice call vote. 
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
  



DRAFT 
Page 3 of 10 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.) PLANNING BOARD APPOINTMENT 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated the Planning Board was established to assure development 
compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and the Unified Land Development Code. The 
Board is made up of seven regular board members and two alternate board members. The 
members are appointed by the City Commission and serve a term of three years.  With the 
succession of Joseph Hults and Judy Schelfo, there are two (2) available alternate member 
positions. If the proposed appointment of Mr. Noone is approved, there will be one (1) remaining 
alternate position open.  Staff recommends approval of Matthew Noone as an alternate member 
of the Planning Board. 
 
Commissioner Maultsby asked if Mr. Noone accepted. 
 
Mayor Lake stated he had personal spoke with Mr. Noone and spoke with him about serving 
and stated he would be an asset to the Planning Board. 
 
Mayor Lake moved to approve Matthew Noone as an alternate member of the Planning Board; 
seconded by Commissioner Dearmin. The motion was approved by unanimous voice call 
vote.  There were no public comments. 
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
 
2.) FIRE AUTOMATIC AID AGREEMENT 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated in 2012 the Lake Alfred Fire Department operated with three 
(3) firefighters scheduled on each shift (3 full-time) with a 2-person minimum. In 2013, following 
an ISO audit, the Fire Department increased staffing to a four (4) firefighter minimum in order to 
maintain the protection rating and the reduction of cost to residents’ homeowner’s insurance (3 
Full-time, 1 volunteer/part-time). 
 
In December of 2014, the City received notification from the County of their intention to end Fire 
Outside Protection Area (OPA) agreements with all of the cities. The City of Lake Alfred 
currently receives $190,895 annually from the OPA agreement that pays the City to provide fire 
protection to the unincorporated area outside of Lake Alfred. The area generally reaches from 
Hwy 17/92 north to I-4.  Most calls are from the subdivisions adjacent to the City (Swiss and 
Gulf, Sweet Water, and Marianna Acres) and few calls are received from the Green Swamp 
area.  The OPA dollars were based on the amount raised from the County Fire Assessment fee 
in the OPA area. The money was split 50/50.  The funding the City receives from this agreement 
($190,895) is equivalent to nearly one third (28%) of our Fire Department’s $682,320 operating 
budget and is equal to 1.5 mils worth of ad valorem property tax revenue. 
 
 



DRAFT 
Page 4 of 10 

 

With the elimination of the OPA agreement, the county is proposing to add a 2-person engine to 
their current EMS station in Lake Alfred (next to Gardner Park) and to replace its current 
paramedic crew with a 2-person dual certified paramedic/firefighter crew. This staffing change 
will effectively put a County 4-person firefighter shift at the EMS station in Lake Alfred. 
 
City staff has met several times and worked through this issue with County management to 
generate the proposed agreement. The primary components of the proposed agreement 
include: 

 Polk County Fire Rescue (PCFR):  
o A PCFR 2-person engine crew will respond on first alarm to fire calls within the 

city limits of Lake Alfred. 
o PCFR Paramedics will continue to respond to Lake Alfred calls. (Residents pay for 

this portion of the service through taxes to the county already). 
o PCFR will provide funding to the City in the amount of $60,000, $40,000, and 

$20,000 over the next three fiscal years in consideration for the City’s response 
with Tanker/Boat (staff negotiated, stop gap funding discussed below). 

o PCFR will backfill Lake Alfred Fire Department when we are on response with 
Tanker/Boat (staff negotiated). 

 
The tanker and boat area includes the previous OPA area along with Polk City.  It also extends 
east to Hwy 27.  These areas generally do not have fire hydrants.  If City staff is out on a call in 
these areas PCFR will back fill the City station to ensure that there are 4 people ready to 
respond to a call.  The Fire Officer in charge is also responsible for ensuring the stations are 
staffed if the firefighters on duty have been called out to a location for an extended period of 
time.  
 

 Lake Alfred Fire Department (LAFD):  
o A LAFD 2-person engine crew will respond on first alarm to fire calls in the former 

Outside Protection Area.  
o LAFD will respond to serious medical calls (Delta & Echo) in the former Outside 

Protection Area (staff negotiated). 
o Through October 1, 2018, the LAFD tanker and rescue boat will respond to areas 

outside of the City (larger than the OPA area).  
 
As a result of the automatic aid agreement the City will be credited with the County’s 2-person 
engine crew for response to fire calls within the City for ISO purposes. Combined with the City 
2-person engine crew, the City will meet the 4-person minimum response required by the ISO to 
maintain the current protection rating (why we originally went from a 2 person minimum to a 4 
person minimum back in 2013). This will allow for a staff reduction of 1 full time firefighter per 
shift (3 total) resulting in a cost savings of approximately $130,000 leaving a $60,000 deficit 
from the loss of the OPA funding (190k – 130k = 60k). Due to the significance of a $60,000 
impact to the City’s budget (0.47 mil equivalent), City staff has negotiated a phase out of the 
funding gap to allow the City to absorb the deficit over a three year period ($60k, $40k, $20k, 
$0). 



DRAFT 
Page 5 of 10 

 

 
The proposed agreement does not come without its concerns. We informed the County of the 
fiscal impact and the City staff’s unwillingness to achieve the cost savings through staff 
reduction layoffs.  In response to this concern, the County agreed to hire on up to three LAFD 
firefighters by October 1, 2015. Of the three, one has taken employment with the City of Winter 
Haven.  Two firefighters are in the County’s hiring process and anticipate state dates with the 
County by the end of September. Following several meetings with the Chief, the LAFD officers 
and personnel identified several additional concerns including: 

 Availability of the County’s 2-person engine crew to respond to a Lake Alfred fire if they 
are constantly out of station on other fire/medical calls in the County. 

 With the LAFD staff being reduced to 2 per shift; our reduced ability to respond to multiple 
or additional service calls. Mitigating circumstances to this concern: 

o We have operated on 2-person shifts in the past. 
o Greater emphasis and dependency on fire officer calling for mutual aid and/or to 

backfill the station. 
o (Staff negotiated) the LAFD will no longer responding to less serious medical calls 

in the County (Mariana Acres, Sweetwater, Swiss & Golf) which should result in a 
significant decrease in our call volume to help offset the staff reduction (90%+ of 
our annual service calls are for medical). 

 
On balance, with the removal of the OPA funding, the proposed agreement allows the City to 
maintain the current level of service to the citizens without having to implement a fire 
assessment fee.  One additional, but important side note is that with the improving economy 
and with the healthcare reform rules on benefits and hours worked, the City would not have 
been able to sustain the 4th firefighter (and our ISO rating) on each shift with volunteer or part 
time firefighters. The City would have needed to either drop back to the 3-person shift (and lose 
the ISO rating) or hire on the additional full time shift at a cost of approximately $130,000. That 
additional expense combined with the loss of the OPA funding would have totaled $320,000 per 
year, the equivalent of 2.51 mils of ad valorem revenue, or (assuming 1,800 improved parcels in 
the City) an approximate $177 per residence fire assessment fee just to maintain the current 
service level (without an associated ad valorem reduction). 
 
City staff, including the City Manager, Fire Chief, and Fire Captains will monitor the call volume 
(inside and outside the city), response rates from the county engine (including time in station), 
and back fill/mutual aid requests in order to assess the long term viability of this agreement and 
our respective staffing and service level. If in the future the agreement does not work, The City 
can add additional firefighter. Staff recommends approval of the Fire Automatic Aid Agreement 
with Polk County. 
 
Commissioner Dearmin stated that a lot of work had been put into the agreement and that the 
City was not losing the Fire Department.  He stated he was proud of the City Manager and the 
Fire staff in their efforts towards reaching an agreement with Polk County.  He was also happy 
that the City does not need to add fire assessment fee.   
 



DRAFT 
Page 6 of 10 

 

Mayor Lake stated he agreed that a lot of work went into the agreement.  He also asked what 
will happen after the end of the agreement. 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated that the impact to the budget is minimized by the phase out 
of the funding.  The three-year phase out allows the City to continue funding other projects and 
items like the Holiday Light repayment will be complete in three years.  Additional funds are in 
contingency. 
 
Vice Mayor Daley stated she was pleased with the inter-governmental cooperation.  She also 
asked about a couple of areas on the map. 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated that the map came from PCFR and is just a planning tool.   
The Fire Department received a gridded map with more detail to determine funding and service 
areas.  The basic area is the old OPA.  Also the City will only be responding to the higher level 
medical calls.  For the record, this is not an effort to consolidate the Fire Department.  Rather it 
strengthens the Fire Department by creating partnerships and maintain the City operations.  The 
City will remain sustainable.   
 
Vice Mayor Daley moved to approve approval of Fire Automatic Aid Agreement with Polk 
County; seconded by Commissioner Dearmin. The motion was approved by unanimous voice 
call vote.  There were no public comments. 
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
 
 
3.) BUDGET PRESENTATION: REVENUE & PAYROLL 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated the previously 
approved FY 15/16 second year budget has been 
moved forward to create the basis for the upcoming 
FY 15/16 operating budget. Changes in revenue 
made from the current FY 14/15 Budget year to the 
upcoming FY 15/16 Budget have been highlighted 
and are based on anticipated revenues or experience 
changes based on the current and previous fiscal 
years. Changes to the proposed FY 15/16 operating 
payroll section from the previously approved second 
year FY 15/16 payroll section have been highlighted 
and include a proposed 2% cost of living adjustment 
(COLA) and other position targeted increases based 
upon the salary survey and proposed payroll goals 
and objectives. 
 
Following all highlighted and proposed changes the 
FY 15/16 & FY 16/17 budgets are balanced with a 



DRAFT 
Page 7 of 10 

 

general fund contingency of $16,303 and $16,042 in each respective budget year and an 
enterprise fund contingency of $9,583 and $18,026 in each respective year.  These numbers 
already include the reduction from the Fire Automatic Aide Agreement previously discussed. 
 
The 15/16 and 16/17 budget revenues are based on previous experience.  Numbers that are in 
white were previous approved for the 15/16 budget and then extended into the 16/17 budget.  A 
value in green denotes an increase in the revenue or decrease in expenditure while the orange 
denotes a decrease in revenue or increase in the expenditure.  Most items are increases such 
as the ad valorem, growth / new construction related items, revenue from investments, and 
state revenue sharing.  The CRA was added to the budget this year.  The Local Communication 
Tax was decreased as discussed, but is still a significant revenue source.  The Street Light 
Maintenance shows as zero because the contract ended.  However this is a good loss of 
revenue since the expenditures were greater than the revenue.  The SRO increased base on a 
COLA for those positions by the School Board.  The Fire Automatic Aide Agreement is shown 
as $60,000 and $40,000 loss in revenue.  There was a corresponding decrease in expenditures 
in payroll.   The Franchise fees were re-structured.  Increase in sanitation are due to growth and 
experience.  Fines are shown as a decrease and fines revenues from traffic tickets are minimal. 
 
Chief Art Bodenheimer stated police fines are citations which were less due to staff training.  
The other part is from fines due to adjudication.   
 
City Manager Leavengood stated that rentals at Mackay have been steadily increasing due to 
improvements, staffing and the citizen committee efforts.  The Parks and Recreation Board 
changed the cancelation fees which may increase that revenue item.  The rentals agreements 
for the cell towers favor the cell companies.  The only time these can be changed is at renewal.  
The City lost $30,000 when Nextel came off the tower and $10,000 from the loss of the T-Mobile 
lease.  In the future staff will aggressively renegotiate with the companies, however they may 
not need the towers in the future.   
 
Mayor Lake asked what companies remained on the towers.   
 
Finance Director Amber Deaton stated the City lost metro PCS (Merged with T-Mobile).  
AT&T and Sprint are on the water tower.  Verizon is on their own tower with T-Mobile.  
 
City Manager Leavengood stated transfers are where money moves in and out of the budget.  
For example the $82,622 Local Option Gas Tax would be moved in from reserves and paired 
with the current year revenue to fund the bi-annual street resurfacing.  The interfund transfer is 
money from the Enterprise Fund to the General Fund to pay for personnel who operate from 
both funds such as the Public Works Director and City manager.   
 
City Manager Leavengood reviewed the Pay Study.  The pay per position is shown as the 
base pay for that position, not the pay for the current employee.  The LLM Sample is the local 
labor market which includes Auburndale, Bartow, Haines City, and Winter Haven.  This is a 
change from the previous survey, because the employees wanted to see the comparison to our 
actual competitors (where staff would go if leaving Lake Alfred).  The salary differences will also 
be larger when compared to a larger city.  The +/- 10% Sample includes cities within the state 
that have a similar populations (4,500-5,500) and similar services.   The colored columns show 
how the base salary compares to the LLM, the +/- 10% Sample, and the combined average.  
The positions are then ranked based on the percent comparison.  In the position is below 70% it 
is in orange, 70-79% is yellow, and above 80% is green.  This coloring is based on one of the 
proposed payroll goal of having the staff salaries at 80% of the market for starting pay.  No City 



DRAFT 
Page 8 of 10 

 

position is above the market.  The study helps to establish framework and set priorities for 
funding positions.   
 
The Commission stipends were also compared and are shown as at 48% for the Mayor and 
39% for the Commissioners.  The Charter stated that the Commission does not get COLAs and 
if an increased is approved the change would not go into effect until the next election in almost 
two years.  The last time the Commission stipends were increased was in 2005.  Staff proposed 
raising the Mayor to $6,000 and the Commissioners to $5,000.   
 
City Manager Leavengood presented his new Personnel and Payroll goals and objectives to 
help retain employees and better compete with the market.   
 
Personnel and Payroll Goals and Objectives 

 2 % COLA in 15/16 and 16/17 
 Increase base starting salaries to 80% of the overall market 
 Convert non-base salary components from flat fee to scaled % (education, longevity, 

holiday) to help gain ground on the market 
 Establish Service Worker II as baseline 
 Explore programs to reduce Health Insurance (self-insured options, health clinics, 

incentives, and HRA/HAS) 
 Increase tuition assistance and expand to student loans 
 Take home vehicle policy for the Police Department 
 Limited leave buyback program to incentives building sick leave 
 Add a Detective position in the Police Department 
 Add Service Worker II position in Public Works 

 
15/16 Payroll Highlights 

 2% Cost of Living Adjustment  
 2% Adjustment for: 

o Department Heads (1st of 3rd ) (72%-77% of market) 
o Police Officers (2nd of 3rd) (76%) 

 6% Adjustment: 
o P&R Director (64%) 
o Librarian (61%) 
o (3) Firefighter (69%) 
o (2) Service Worker I (77%) 

 
16/17 Payroll Highlights 

 Mayor & Commission 
o $3,600/$2,400 (48%/39%) 
o Last adjusted in 2005 (went from $1,800/$1,200) 
o Proposed: $6,000/$5,000 (to 79%/80%)  

 2% Adjustment for: 
o Police Officers (3rd of 3rd) (~78%) 

 6% Adjustment: 
o (3) Firefighter (~75%) 

 
Vice Mayor Daley asked about the additional benefits in comparison other cities.  Specifically if 
other cities were requiring staff to pay into the pension or towards insurance.  She would also 
like to see a Land Steward position to help with grants and event planning at Mackay. 



DRAFT 
Page 9 of 10 

 

 
City Manager Leavengood stated that Health Care is a priority and that staff is reviewing the 
options such as the self-insured options, health clinics, incentives, and HRA/HAS.  In addition 
with the impacts the City may have to evaluate a multi-tiered system where employees can 
choose a general pan covered by the City or choose to pay more for a better plan.  The pension 
cost are reasonable for the benefit, however the pension cost may increase from retaining 
employees longer. 
 
Finance Director Amber Deaton stated that employees pay 5% towards their pension which is 
automatically reduces their pay.  
 
City Manager Leavengood stated if given conceptual approval, the payroll and revenue 
sections will be included in the preparation of the final budget for consideration in public 
hearings in September along with any changes that the Commission may determine or that may 
otherwise be necessary.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Payroll section, goals & objectives and Revenue 
Sections to be included in the FY 15/16 Budget for consideration.  The City commission has 
now seen the Capitol budget, operation expenditures, revenue and finally payroll.  The 
proposed budget is balanced, however staff will analyze the budget one last time before the 
final presentation in September.  The budget will not be approved until final approval at second 
reading in September. 
 
Vice Mayor Dearmin moved to approval of the proposed Payroll section, goals & objectives 
and Revenue Sections to be included in the FY 15/16 Budget; seconded by Commissioner 
Maultsby. The motion was approved by unanimous voice call vote.  There were no public 
comments. 
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
 
 

RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS 
 
There were no citizen statements. 
 

COMMISSIONER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner Maultsby commented on the goal to reach 7,500 people.  He would like to 
have someone come in and help the City reach that goal.  Development is occurring in the area, 
but the City needs additional commercial development. 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated development is increasing especially along the I-4 corridor.  
Within Lake Alfred we have seen the LGI homes on 557, Track 4, and platting documents are 
moving thru the Planning Board.  The City has acquired the Buchanan building and the goal is 
to demolish that building and to have people from the Central Florida Development Council here 
to aide in marketing that property.  The Community Redevelopment Agency was established 
and can act as the City economic development arm to invest fund.  Magnolia Ridge is also 



DRAFT 
Page 10 of 10 

 

developing.  Another way to grow the City is annexation.  This may be more attractive as the 
County implements the Fire Fee and homestead may make it a wash for more areas to annex.  
The staff is working on information for communities and the idea was pitched to Kings Point.  
Marianna Acres thought they were in the City during the election.  Another way to add 
properties is when the City extends water or sewer services.  
 
Mayor Lake welcomed Matt Noone to the Planning Board.  He also mentioned several articles 
including Ron Tackle Box in the Fishing Tackle Retailer, the Citrus Research and Education 
Center in Florida Trend and Gary’s Oyster bar in the Polk Life Magazine.  He stated that starting 
August 17, he will be hosting Monday Morning with the Mayor at the lake Alfred Diner from 9-10 
am.  He will bring comments back to the Commission and staff. 
 
Vice Mayor Daley asked if the Commission needed to formally delegate the Mayor as the 
voting delegate FLC conference. 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated that the Commission passed a resolution that delegated the 
Mayor.   
 
Vice Mayor Daley stated she had been in contact with Carol Fulks with Discovery High School.  
They have decided to re-apply in case the November hearing does not rule in their favor.  She 
also contacted Representative Wood and Kelli Stargel to send a letter of support.  They could 
also use the Citizen initiative, petition, or emails.  The City sent a letter with the previous 
application.    The Mackay fact finding committee is working on a priority list to improve the 
property which will be presented to the To the Commission soon.  She stated she is looking 
forward to the Water Summit and FLC Conference and it is a great opportunity.  Lastly she 
thanked staff for their work on the budget.   
 
Commissioner Duncan thanked everyone for their hard work.   
 
Commissioner Dearmin thanked everyone for their hard work on the budget and is looking 
forward to next week.   
 
With there being no further business to discuss, Mayor Lake adjourned the meeting at 9:13 pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Ameé N. Bailey 
City Clerk 





















LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 17, 2015 

AGENDA 
 
 
1.) RESOLUTION 06-15: WAYFINDING SIGNAGE EVALUATION AND CRITERIA 
 

 
ISSUE: The City Commission will consider resolution 06-15 for the adoption of the City’s 
Downtown Wayfinding Sign Evaluation and Criteria. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Resolution 06-15: Wayfinding Signage Evaluation & Criteria 
 Wayfinding FDOT Locations & Side Street Signage 

 
ANALYSIS: The proposed Downtown Wayfinding Signage Program is the cumulative effort of 
city staff, the business community, City Commission, and city consultants working together to 
address the challenges and opportunities in the City’s downtown district. The plan was 
presented and approved by the City Commission on October 20, 2014 in an attempt to improve 
signage within downtown and assist businesses while aiding in the City’s branding effort 
consistent with the Downtown Master Plan. 

The primary components of the plan include gateway signage, directional signage on 17/92 for 
public assets, and side street signage to assist the downtown businesses. City staff is proposing 
to administer and maintain the program. The Wayfinding Sign Evaluation and Criteria 
establishes the process for permitting, qualifying, and funding sign changes. 

 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Resolution 06-15. 
 
 
  



1 | P a g e   R e s o l u t i o n  0 6 - 1 5  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 06-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, 
FLORIDA; ESTABLISHING EVALUATION CRITERIA 
FOR ADDITIONS OR MODIFICATIONS TO THE LAKE 
ALFRED WAYFINDING SIGN SYSTEM PLAN; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Alfred has engaged with the community and identified an 
opportunity to improve signage within downtown Lake Alfred to assist businesses and foster a 
sense of place; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Wayfinding signage program offers the best solution to identified signage 
challenges in the downtown area due to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) 
regulations of signage within their zone of control; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Wayfinding Guide Sign System Plan was adopted by Resolution 14-14 
and was found in compliance with all applicable FDOT regulations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined the Wayfinding Signage Program to be 
an asset of the City and for the City to administer and operate the program. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA, that: 
 
SECTION 1. POLICY.   
 
The City Commission approves the Wayfinding Guide Sign System Evaluation Criteria policy as 
set forth in Exhibit “A”, which includes sign evaluation and criteria, preliminary sign location master 
plan, and the signage design to be utilized in determining sign location and design within the City 
of Lake Alfred. 

 
SECTION 2. CITY RESPONSIBILITY.   
 
The Wayfinding Program is an asset of the City and shall be maintained, operated and funded by 
the City. Updating of the side street signage to reflect new businesses and business turnover shall 
he done so periodically (e.g. every six months) by the City to be included under the maintenance 
of the program. Notwithstanding the previous, reasonable fees may be collected to cover the 
City’s costs for expedited signage or replacement signage outside of the regular maintenance 
interval. 
 
SECTION 3. RIGHTS.   
 
As owner and operator of the Wayfinding Signage Program, the City retains and reserves all rights 
and interests within the program.  No business or private interest shall have a vested right to be 
placed or to maintain placement on the side street program. Guidelines have been set forth in 
Exhibit “A” and designed to administer the program in a fair and equitable manner. 
 
 



2 | P a g e   R e s o l u t i o n  0 6 - 1 5  
 

SECTION 4. ADMINISTRATION.   
 
The City Manager or his designee shall be responsible for the administration of the program and 
reserve the right to interpret and apply the provisions of this program and may generate additional 
internal departmental policies to supplement or enhance the guidelines and provisions of this 
program to ensure its effective administration.  

 
SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE.   
 
This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 

PASSED IN PUBLIC SESSION of the City Commission of the City of Lake Alfred, Florida, this 

17th day of August, 2015. 

 
 

CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA 
       CITY COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
              
ATTEST:                    Charles O. Lake, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
       
Ameé Bailey Speck, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
 
 
       
Frederick J. Murphy, Jr., City Attorney 
 
 



Resolution 06-15 
Exhibit “A” 

 

3 | P a g e   R e s o l u t i o n  0 6 - 1 5  
 

City of Lake Alfred - Wayfinding Sign Evaluation and Criteria 

Following the re-alignment and construction of the US Highway 17/925 one-way pairs, the City 
of Lake Alfred adopted the Wayfinding Guide Sign System Plan.  The Plan was adopted in 
October 2014 by Resolution 14-14 to improve signage within downtown and assist businesses 
while fostering a sense of place. A wayfinding sign is a directional sign that efficiently and safely 
guides the motorists and pedestrians to key public facilities including civic, cultural, visitor and 
recreational destination within the City of Lake Alfred. The plan identifies three types of signs: 

 
Gateway signs 

 
 In FDOT controlled right-of-way 
 3 locations 
 Design and content cannot change 

 

 
Vehicular Directional Signs 

 
 Regulated by FDOT  
 In FDOT controlled right-of-way 
 9 locations 
 Design cannot change 
 Content can be updated but must meet 

Rule 14-51 of Florida Administrative Code 
(no business names, only civic, cultural, 
visitor and recreational destinations) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Vehicular Directional Signs  

(Side Streets) 
 

 Not regulated by FDOT 
 In City controlled right-of-way 
 9 locations in Phase I (2015) 
 More locations may be added at a later 

date 
 Design cannot change 
 Content can be changed by following the 

application process described herein 
 

 



 

4 | P a g e   R e s o l u t i o n  0 6 - 1 5  
 

REQUESTS FOR SIGN ADDITIONS/MODIFICATIONS 

FOR FDOT VEHICULAR DIRECTIONAL SIGNS 

For requests to include or change a destination that is defined as a public interest 
including civic, cultural, visitor or recreational destination. These signs are located in the 

FDOT right-of-way on US  Highway 17/92 (northbound and southbound), and require 
FDOT approval. 

What is the wayfinding sign evaluation process? 

1.  Submit a written request to either add destinations to an existing wayfinding sign or to 
propose a new sign in a new location.  Submittals shall include a site plan showing the 
existing sign location(s) with the existing and proposed destination. Any proposed new sign 
locations shall include a site plan displaying neighboring intersections and directional signs. 

2.  Submit a written request 
Community Development Department  
City of Lake Alfred 
120 East Pomelo Street  
Lake Alfred FL 33850 
 

3. The written request shall be evaluated according to the following criteria:  
 

a.  The existing wayfinding sign contains space for additional destinations. 
b.  The wayfinding sign does not interfere with visibility of existing signs or traffic control 

devices 
c.  The destination is confirmed by the Florida Department of Transportation to be an 

eligible destination. 
 

 
What are the destinations that qualify for wayfinding signage? 
  

1.  Destinations that qualify for inclusion on wayfinding signage are listed in Rule 14-51.011 
of the Florida Administrative Code. The intent is to provide guidance and navigation 
information to local cultural, historical, recreational, and tourist activities. No destination may 
be displayed for the purpose of advertising.  



 

5 | P a g e   R e s o l u t i o n  0 6 - 1 5  
 

REQUESTS FOR SIGN ADDITIONS/MODIFICATIONS 

FOR SIDE STREET VEHICULAR DIRECTIONAL SIGNS 

For requests to include or change a business name that is recently opened or has 
changed names. These signs are located in City rights-of-way on various cross-streets 

between the US Highway 17/92 one-way pair, and require City approval only. 

What is the wayfinding sign evaluation process? 

1.  Written requests for businesses to be added to the wayfinding signs shall include a site plan 
showing the proposed destination and sign location(s). Existing destinations on proposed 
sign modification shall be listed on sign request. Any proposed new sign locations shall 
include a site plan displaying neighboring intersections and directional signs. 

2.  Submit a written request 
Community Development Department  
City of Lake Alfred 
120 East Pomelo Street  
Lake Alfred FL 33850 
 

3. The written request shall be evaluated according to the following criteria:  
 

a.  The existing wayfinding sign contains space for additional messages 
b.  The wayfinding sign does not interfere with visibility of existing signs or traffic control 

devices 
c.  The destination shall meet the qualifications on the wayfinding criteria list  

(see below) 
 
4. The applicant requesting the change will be placed in the queue with the sign 

addition/modification to be provided by the City during a regular maintenance interval (e.g. 
every 6 months). Changes outside of this cycle may be done so but at the applicant’s 
expense. 

 
What is the criteria to be included in the City’s wayfinding signage? 
  
1.  For City right-of-way vehicular directional signs, businesses may request to be added or 

exchanged when a new business opens in the community. Businesses must prove the 
following in order to qualify for the request: 
a. Business must obtain a valid Business Tax Receipt from the City, and provide 

appropriate licensing by others as required by law 
b. Active and current utility account with the City 

 
2. Other Selection criteria: 

a. Businesses without US Highway 17/92 frontage will be given priority 
b. Businesses that offer retail, restaurant, beverage and other convenience items or 

services will be given priority.  
c. There are a maximum of 6-8 businesses per sign, first come first served. 
d. Higher priority will be given to businesses in closer proximity to the respective sign 



 

6 | P a g e   R e s o l u t i o n  0 6 - 1 5  
 

e. Lower priority will be given to businesses on corner lots located at the end of the 
respective side street sign (i.e. That would already be visible upon approaching the 
intersection. 

f. Side street signage will only indicate businesses that are aligned with the proper traffic 
pattern (e.g. won’t indicate a business whose respective direction from the sign is the 
wrong way on a wrong way street). 

 
 
 



1117 East Robinson Street

Orlando, Florida 32801

Phone:  407.425.0452

Licenses:

Engineering C.O.A. No. 3215

Survey L.B. No. 7143

Architectural Lic. No. AA2600926

Landscape Lic. No. LC0000298

CPH, Inc.

Job No.:

FDOT Submittal

L2748

Scale:

Date:

NONE

File: Wayfinding Plan - 

2014C

June 15, 2015

M
A

T
T

H
E

W
 
C

.
 
C

U
S

H
M

A
N

,
 
P

.
E

.

F
L
 
P

.
E

.
 
N

o
.
 
7
3
1
5
0



C

i

t

y

 

H

a

l

l

F

i

r

e

 

D

e

p

t

P

o

l

i

c

e

 

D

e

p

t

L

i

b

r

a

r

y

L

i

o

n

s

 

P

a

r

k

D

o

w

n

t

o

w

n

B

u

s

i

n

e

s

s

D

i

s

t

r

i

c

t

P

o

s

t

 

O

f

f

i

c

e

L
i
o
n
s
 
P

a
r
k

D
o
w

n
t
o
w

n

B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s

D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t

C
e
n
t
r
a
l
 
P

a
r
k

D

o

w

n

t

o

w

n

B

u

s

i

n

e

s

s

D

i

s

t

r

i

c

t

e

n

t

r

a

l

 

P

a

r

k

C

L
i
o
n
s

 
P

a
r
k

P
o
s
t
 
O

f
f
i
c
e

C
i
t
y

 
H

a
l
l

F
i
r
e

 
D

e
p
t

P
o
l
i
c
e

 
D

e
p
t

L
i
b
r
a
r
y

CPH, Inc.
Plan Prepared By:

1117 E. Robinson Street ~ Orlando, Fl. 32801

Ph: 407.425.0452

Licenses:

Engineering C.O.A. No. 3215

Survey L.B. No. 7143

Architectural Lic. No. AA2600926

Landscape Lic. No. LC0000298

Map-1

Job No.:

Placement

L2748

Scale:

Date:

1" = 350' ±

File: Location Map - Sign

2014C

Page

June 15, 2015

TRAFFIC FLOW - LEFT LANE

TRAFFIC FLOW - RIGHT LANE

VEHICULAR DIRECTIONAL SIGN FDOT  (10)

VEHICULAR DIRECTIONAL SIGN CONTENT

SIGN NUMBER ON MESSAGE SCHEDULE

(SEE SIGN MESSAGE SCHEDULE)

NON FDOT REGULATED SIGN

Lions Park

Post Office

MATTHEW C. CUSHMAN, P.E.

FL P.E. No. 73150



SHINN BOULEVARD R/W

E
. 
P

IE
R

C
E

 S
T
R

E
E

T
 R

/W

W
. 
O

R
A

N
G

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 R

/W

W
. 
S

A
N

F
O

R
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T
 R

/W

E
. 
P

IE
R

C
E

 S
T
R

E
E

T
 R

/W

W
. 
O

R
A

N
G

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 R

/W

78
' ±

56
' ±

CPH, Inc.
Plan Prepared By:

1117 E. Robinson Street ~ Orlando, Fl. 32801

Ph: 407.425.0452

Licenses:

Engineering C.O.A. No. 3215

Survey L.B. No. 7143

Architectural Lic. No. AA2600926

Landscape Lic. No. LC0000298

Map-4

Job No.:

Placement

L2748

Scale:

Date:

1" = 50' ±

File: Location Map - Sign

2014C

Page

June 15, 2015

N

MATTHEW C. CUSHMAN, P.E.

FL P.E. No. 73150



City Hall

Fire Dept

Police Dept

Library

Lions Park

Downtown

 

Business

District

Post Office

Lions Park

Downtown

Business

District

Lions Park

Post Office

entral ParkC

Downtown

Business

District

entral ParkC

1117 East Robinson Street

Orlando, Florida 32801

Phone:  407.425.0452

Licenses:

Engineering C.O.A. No. 3215

Survey L.B. No. 7143

Architectural Lic. No. AA2600926

Landscape Lic. No. LC0000298

CPH, Inc.

Job No.:

FDOT Submittal

L2748

Scale:

Date:

3/8" = 1'-0"

File: Wayfinding Plan - 

2014C

MS-1

Page

June 15, 2015

M
A

T
T

H
E

W
 
C

.
 
C

U
S

H
M

A
N

,
 
P

.
E

.

F
L
 
P

.
E

.
 
N

o
.
 
7
3
1
5
0



 

1:
 A

lfr
ed

 S
tr

ee
t 

 
 L

av
en

de
r N

’L
ac

e 
Te

a 
Ro

om
 


 L

ak
e 

Al
fr

ed
 A

ni
m

al
 H

os
pi

ta
l 


 W

at
er

 T
ec

h 


De
an

’s
 A

ut
o 

Sh
op

 


W
es

t A
lfr

ed
 S

tr
ee

t 

DRAFT 

2:
 N

 L
ak

e 
Sh

or
e 

 
 L

av
en

de
r N

’L
ac

e 
Te

a 
Ro

om
 


 L

ak
e 

Al
fr

ed
 A

ni
m

al
 

Ho
sp

ita
l 


 W

at
er

 T
ec

h 

3: Pomelo Stop sign 
 

TBD 

4: Haines Blvd 

One Twenty One Intl 

Stevo’s Aircooled Treasures 

Undercover Interiors & Designs 

Scotty’s Muffler Center 

5: Haines Blvd 

Metro 

Centerstate Bank 

Chinh’s Tires 

Artzy Zone 

Cornerstone Grill 

Gene’s Coin-Op  Laundry 

Tela’s Fabric 

6: Pierce 

Hometown TV Service 

Wells Fargo 

Sigman’s Earthscape 

Celia’s Chop Shop 
 

7: Cummings 

Lane’s Golf Carts 

 Freedom Insurance 

Pink Poodle Groomers 
 

8: Cummings 

Ron’s Tackle Box 

Vanpool Auto Sales 

Wong Family Dentist 

New Image Awnings and Signs 

Sharmin Store/LAWash Center 

Luigi’s Italian Restaurant 

Instyle Barber 
 

9: Thelma 

LA Barber Shop 

LA Liquor & Tobacco 

Dollar General 

Strawberry Patch 

Tax Lady & Associates 

Trike Traders 

China Wok 

Boone’s Furniture 

Citgo 

Beverage Castle 
 



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 17, 2015 

 

 
2.)  EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT 2015/2016 
 
 
ISSUE:  The City Commission will consider accepting the 2015/2016 Federal Funding for the 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program for all of Polk County 
Agencies. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Distribution letter 
 

ANALYSIS: Florida Administrative Code requires that the units of government in each county 
reach consensus concerning the expenditure of these funds, including the projects to be 
implemented.  To verify this consensus, the Florida Department of Law Enforcement requires 
each applicant to obtain a letter of support from at least 51% of the local units of government, 
representing at least 51% of the county population.  

The following amount have been allocated to fund projects in Lake Alfred. 

 2013/2014 Allocation $ 8,407 
 2014/2015 Allocation $10,193 
 2015/2016 Allocation $ 9,152 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the fund distribution for Polk County and send a letter 
of acceptance to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement 
  





 
 
City of Lake Alfred  Phone:  (863) 291‐5270 
120 E. Pomelo Street  Fax: (863) 291‐5317 
Lake Alfred, FL  33850    www.mylakealfred.com 
 
 

 
August 17, 2015 
 
 
 
Ms. Petrina T. Herring 
Administrator 
Office of Criminal Justice Grants 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement 
2331 Phillips Road 
Tallahassee, FL 32308 
 
Dear Ms. Herring: 
 
In compliance with State of Florida Rule 11D-9, F.A.C., the City of Lake Alfred approves the distribution of $170,908.00 of 
Federal Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Edward Byrne Memorial JAG Program funds for the following projects within Polk County: 
 
Agency    Project Title                             Dollar Amount of Federal Funds 
 
Auburndale Police Dept      Auburndale Community Safety Equipment Purchase  $   8,524.00 
Bartow Police Dept             Bartow PD Equipment Purchase    $ 13,653.00 
Davenport Police Dept                      First Aid Equipment Project    $   8,273.00 
Town of Dundee                               Speed Awareness Program    $   4,117.00 
City of Eagle Lake    Eagle Lake ALPR      $   7,139.00 
City of Fort Meade  Vehicle Speed Awareness     $   4,149.00 
City of Frostproof   Frostproof Golf Cart     $   6,516.00 
Haines City Police Dept     Patrol Equipment Initiative     $   9,428.00 
Lake Alfred Police Dept         SRO Ride      $   9,152.00 
Lake Hamilton Police Dept       Evidence Storage Upgrade Grant    $   4,925.00 
Lake Wales Police Dept  Lake Wales Wireless Fingerprint Scanner Program  $   9,170.00 
Lakeland Police Dept  Police Athletic League VI     $ 21,462.00 
City of Mulberry   Solar Panels for ALPR     $   3,330.00 
City of Polk City   Reduce Crime by Environmental Design   $   4,670.00 
Polk County Sheriff’s Office Equipment Purchase Program    $ 28,733.00 
Tenth Judicial Circuit  Post Adjudication Drug Court Program for Misdemeanants $ 17,750.00 
Winter Haven Police Dept  Traffic Safety      $   9,917.00 

 
 
 
Sincerely,        

 
 
 
Charles O. Lake 
Mayor 
 



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 17, 2015 

 
 
3.) BID PROPOSAL: RESIDENTIAL RECYCLING COLLECTION SERVICES 
 

 
ISSUE: The City Commission will review and consider bids for residential curbside recycling 
collection services. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Bid Summary & Detailed Bids 

 In-house option summary 

 Request For Proposal 
 
ANALYSIS: The City is currently provided curbside residential recycling by Republic Services in 
a 3-year contract set to expire at the end of September 2015. Following the receipt of the 
proposed monthly renewal rate of $5.00 per residence (over double the current rate of $2.38) 
the City began exploring alternative options including providing the service in-house and going 
out to bid for alternative providers.  
 
Following feedback received from the City Commission at the June 15th meeting a request for 
proposal (RFP) was prepared to solicit bids from qualified companies to provide once a week 
residential curbside recycling service with a 65 gallon container. Based upon existing service, 
curbside recycling would service approximately 1,750 residential units and generate 250 tons of 
recyclable tonnage per year. The advertised contract period was set as a three year fixed rate 
with the option of three, one-year renewals.  The RFP was advertised July 8th through July 14th 
and a mandatory pre-proposal meeting was held on July 23, 2015 at City Hall and attended by 
five companies. Sealed proposals were received and opened on August 10, 2015. The City 
received the following bids (pricing is per month per unit): 
 
 Advanced Disposal Services (Ponte Verde, FL):   No Bid 
 Progressive Waste Solutions (Altamonte Springs, FL):  $3.16 
 Republic Services:       $5.48  
 Trash Taxi: 

o With rewards program:     $2.93  
o Without rewards program:     $2.53 

 Waste Not:        $6.50 
 
After reviewing the bids the most viable options would be either Trash Taxi at the $2.53 or the 
previously presented in-house option. At the current rate of $2.38 city staff estimates the in-
house option would cost $40,000 annually and generate a net $10,000 annual surplus which is 
consistent with our commercial sanitation surcharge (~20%); each additional 0.05 cents in rate 
generates an additional $1,000 in revenue. The in-house option would cut into our remaining 
route capacity before requiring another sanitation truck being added to the fleet and an initial 
investment of $90,000 to purchase the 65-gallon containers. These concerns are particularly 
offset by: 
 
 Following the route audit we have found additional efficiencies and capacity in our 

current routes that would allow for recycling within our current operations. 



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 17, 2015 

 The Republic Bid contained a provision to utilize their MURF for drop off that would 
provide us with a dividend based upon the value of our recyclable materials; or 
alternatively the City could propose transfer of ownership of the current containers to the 
City (could be relabeled with City decal). 

 If the City did have to make purchase of the containers; the majority of the funding is 
available in restricted revenue for the purchase of the containers. 

 Due to the tighter margins with the lower rate staff would propose an inflation adjustment 
to be included with the in-house option (either tied to CPI or a flat amount every year or 
every other year) that would apply to the sanitation services. 

 The restricted revenue source for sanitation vehicle replacement will have enough to 
purchase a vehicle in 2-3 years without any impact to the general fund or other 
sanitation operations. Additionally, staff is pursuing opportunities with other larger 
municipalities in the region for the purchase of a high quality used vehicle. 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Pleasure of the City Commission. 

  



1 | P a g e  
 

City of Lake Alfred, Florida 
2015 Residential Recycle 

 
Bid Opening 

August 10, 2015 @ 10 am  
City Hall 

 
Sealed bids were publicly opened on August 10, 2015 at 10:00 am in the Lake Alfred City Hall at 120 
E. Pomelo Street, Lake Alfred, FL  33850. 
 
Companies Present: Trash Taxi, Republic Services, and Progressive Waste.  Please see attached sign-in 
sheet for more information. 
 
Staff City of Lake Alfred: Public Works Director John Deaton, Public Works Superintendent Mike 
Davis, and City Clerk Ameé Bailey. 
 
The following companies submitted bids as indicated below listed alphabetically. 
 

1.  Advanced Disposal Services     No Bid 
90 Fort Wade Rd 
Ponte Verda, FL 32081 

 
2.  Progressive Waste Solutions     $3.16/month/unit 

1099 Miller Dr. 
Altamonte Springs, FL 32701 

 
3. Republic Services      $5.48/month/unit 

3820 Maine Ave. 
Lakeland, FL 33801 

 
4. Trash Taxi       $2.93/month/unit 

1048 ½ US 92       $2.53/month/unit w/o rewards 
Auburndale, Fl 33823 

 
5. Waste Not       $6.50/month/unit 

3941 Bryn Mawr St. 
Orlando, Fl 32809 

 
 
 
4 Bids Submitted 































































































































 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
CITY OF LAKE ALFRED 

 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 
 FOR 

RESIDENTIAL RECYCLE COLLECTION SERVICES 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

July 2015 



RFP - Residential Recycling Collection Services                                                                        Page 1 of 7 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL  
RESIDENTIAL RECYCLING COLLECTION SERVICES 

 
Sealed proposals will be received in the Office of the City Clerk August 10, 2015, prior to 10:00 am. 
 
Attached are important instructions and specifications regarding responses to this Request for Proposal.  
Failure to follow these instructions could result in Proposer disqualification. 
 
This document is issued by the City of Lake Alfred and as such shall be the sole distributor of all 
addendums and/or changes to these documents.  It is the responsibility of the proposer to determine 
issuance of documents directly with the City Clerk.  The City is not responsible for any solicitations 
issued through subscriber, publications, or other sources and the proposer should not rely on such 
sources for information regarding the solicitation 
 
A MANDATORY pre-proposal meeting will be held on Thursday, July 23, 2015 at 2:30 p.m. at the 
Lake Alfred City Hall, 120 E. Pomelo Street, Lake Alfred, FL.  
 
Questions regarding this proposal must be in writing and must be sent to Ameé Bailey, City Clerk, via 
email at abailey@mylakealfred.com or via fax at (863) 298-4440.  All questions must be received by 
July 31, 2015, prior to 3:00 p.m. 
 
Prospective proposers shall not contact, communicate with or discuss any matter relating in any way to 
the Request for Proposal with the City Commissioners, any employee of City.  This prohibition begins 
with the issuance of the Request for Proposal and ends upon execution of the final contract. Such 
communications initiated by a proposer shall be grounds for disqualifying the offending proposer from 
consideration for award of the proposal and/or any future proposal. 
 
Proposals may be mailed, express mailed or hand delivered to: 
 
City of Lake Alfred 
Ameé Bailey, City Clerk 
155 E. Pomelo Street,  
Lake Alfred Fl. 33850 
 



RFP - Residential Recycling Collection Services                                                                        Page 2 of 7 
 

SECTION 1 
INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW 

 
The City of Lake Alfred is soliciting proposals from qualified companies that are interested in providing 
curbside collection services for residential recyclable materials in the incorporated areas of Lake Alfred.   
 

SECTION 2 
SCOPE OF CONTRACTOR’S WORK 

 
Contractor must be able to provide one day per week curbside collection (single stream) of recyclable 
materials to approximately 1,750 residential units (approx. 250 tons/year).  The Contractor shall provide 
sufficient equipment, in proper operating condition, so regular schedules and routs of collection can be 
maintained.   
 

A. RESIDENTIAL UNITS 
 

Residential customers shall be identified as, but not limited to, single-family, duplex, and multi-
family units.   

 
1. The Contractor shall provide service that include container service which provide one (1) 

sixty-five (65) gallon containers that shall be emptied, at a weekly frequency of collection  
 

2. The Contractor is responsible for notifying the City of the collection schedule for billing of 
franchise fees.  The City reserves the right to revise the service option and/or frequency of 
collection for individual customer if required to protect the public health or to eliminate 
public nuisances. 

 
3. The Contractor shall make collections with as little disturbance as possible to residences, 

business, and commercial establishments.   
 

4. Collection shall occur between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m.  This work shall be done 
in a sanitary manner and any refuse spilled by the collector shall be picked up immediately 
by the Contractor’s employees.  The City reserves the right to adjust the time of service for 
individual customers to protect the public health or eliminate public nuisances.   

 
5. Containers shall be owned and maintained by the Contractor.  The Contractor’s name and 

telephone number must be displayed on all containers. 
 

B. CUSTOMER AND OPERATIONAL INFORMATION 
 

1. The Contractor at the Contractor’s expense shall provide each customer with a condensed 
version, approved by the City, of rules and regulations for refuse collection.  Said condensed 
version shall outline annually, rates and obligations of the customer and Contractor, according to 
terms of this Contract.   
 



RFP - Residential Recycling Collection Services                                                                        Page 3 of 7 
 

2. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports to the contract Administrator regarding the tonnage 
of residential recycling collected within the city by the tonnage of collected by route per day, and 
any other information required by the City, County or State of Florida to meet the requirements 
of the Solid Waste Management Act or to obtain grant funds from the Solid Waste Management 
Fund.  All monthly reports shall be submitted to the City’s Contract Administrator no late than 
the tenth (10) day of each month. 
 

3. The Contractor shall provide to the City an annual financial statement, prepared in accordance 
with GAAP, certified by a certified public, and detailing the City of Lake Alfred contract as a 
separate cost center. 
 

4. The Contractor shall be required to appear before the City Commission on a semi-annual basis to 
discuss solid waste issues.  Such appearance shall be scheduled through the City Manager’s 
Office. 
 

C. HOLIDAYS 
 
On those days when the disposal site generally used by the Contractor is closed in 
commemoration of a holiday, the Contractor shall reschedule the collection of that day’s routes 
within that week.  The Contractor shall notify customers of this rescheduling two (2) weeks in 
advance.  Notification shall be provided, but not limited to, notification in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the City 
 

D. EXCLUSIVE RIGHT 
 
The City grants to the Contractor the exclusive right and obligation to provide recycling collection 
within the City of Lake Alfred. 
 
E. SERVICE LEVEL REVISIONS 

 
The City reserves the right to revise the levels of service as described in Section 2 (A)(1) after 
providing sixty (60) days notice to the Contractor and upon mutual agreement of both the Contractor 
and the City.  This service adjustment may be made solely at the City’s discretion. 
 

SECTION 3 
DURATION OF CONTRACT AND RATE 

 
A. DURATION OF CONTRACT 

 
1. The term of the Agreement shall be for a period of three(3) years, with work commencing 

October 1, 2015 and terminating September 30, 2018, with a one year renewal option, unless 
terminated or breached at an earlier date.   

 
2. The Contractor must commence work on the date and year entered in Section 3(A).  Failure to 

commence work on the specified date will result in forfeiture of the bid bond or the performance 
bond. 



RFP - Residential Recycling Collection Services                                                                        Page 4 of 7 
 

 
3. The initial term of this contract may be extended at the discretion of the City and the Contractor 

for up to three (3) additional term of one (1) year.  This provision shall be self-executing.  If the 
City chooses not to exercise its right to a one (1) year extension, the City shall notify the 
Contractor in writing not less than 180 days prior to the expiration of the initial term, of the 
City’s intention not to extend the term.   
 

B. RATE INCREASE OR RATE DECREASE 
 

The rate increases or decreases during the term of the contract shall occur for the following reasons: 
 
1. The contractor may petition the City Commission for a rate increase and must petition for a rate 

decrease, on an annual basis for substantial and unusual increases or decreases in the cost of 
doing business arising from revised laws, ordinances or regulations.  Any such petition shall be 
accompanied by an analysis, prepared by a certified public accountant (or other financial advisor 
acceptable to the City) and certified as to accuracy and for compliance with GAAP, of the pre-
tax cash on cash impact of said unusual increase or decrease on the expenses (or decrease), and 
its proportional impact on the Contractor’s cost of doing business.  The analysis shall be 
accompanied by not less than six (6) months actual financial date of the business. 

 
2. Bid prices shall remain firm for the thirty-six (36) months of this contract. The successful bidder 

will have an opportunity to request a price adjustment at each one year renewal option of this 
contract. The request for price adjustment must be submitted in writing no later than 90 calendar 
days prior to July 1st. of each renewal year. The successful vendor will only be allowed to submit 
one request for price adjustment per contract year. Any approved request for price adjustment 
will not take effect until the annual anniversary of the contract start date and such price 
adjustment will be in effect for the 12-month period following said anniversary date. Written 
requests for price adjustments shall not exceed the rate of inflation determined by the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) for urban wage earners and clerical workers, U.S. city average, all items 
(1982-84-100), published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics appropriately adjusted for the 
calendar year (January 1st. to December 31st.) preceding the calendar year in which the request is 
made. Any price adjustment shall be approved by the City Commission prior to the new price 
becoming effective. 

 
At such time as the Contractor requests a rate increase or decrease pursuant to the above 
paragraph, the City franchise fee shall be adjusted simultaneously using the same formula. 

 
SECTION 4 

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

A. CONTRACTOR AS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
It is expressly agreed and understood that the Contractor is in all respects an Independent Contractor 
as to the work notwithstanding in certain respects the Contractor is bound to follow the direction of 
designated City officials, and that the Contractor is in no respect an agent, servant or employee of 



RFP - Residential Recycling Collection Services                                                                        Page 5 of 7 
 

the City.  The contract specifies the work to be done by the Contractor.  Contractor must have 5 
years of experience servicing a commercial franchise of at least 1,000 residential accounts.   
 
B. TAXES 

 
The Contractor shall pay all federal, state and local taxes, to include sales tax, social security, 
workmen’s compensation, unemployment insurance, and other required taxes which may be 
chargeable against labor, material, equipment, real estate and other items necessary to and in the 
performance of this contract.   
 

 
C. GUARANTEES OF PERFORMANCE 

 
Surety Bond:  The Contractor hereby deposits with the City a performance bond in the amount of 
one hundred percent (100%) of the total annual bid as a guarantee to the City of faithful performance 
under the terms of this contract.  This performance bond shall be written by a company with a Class 
9, A higher financial rating as shown in Best’s Key Rating Guide. 

 
D. DISPOSAL OF REFUSE 
 
The City will not be responsible for disposal fees charged by the county or other disposal operator 
for the Contractor to use the facility.  The Contractor is responsible for disposing all collected waste 
in accordance with state and federal statutes and/or regulations and agrees to accept all liability for 
any remedial activities or fines which may arise from the unlawful disposal of waste. 
 
E. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

 
The Contractor hereby agrees to abide by all applicable federal, state, county and city laws and 
regulations including federal, state, county and city laws and regulations relating to hazardous 
substances.  The contractor and his surety indemnify and save harmless the city, all its officers, 
representatives, agents and employees against any claim or liability arising from or based on the 
violation of any such laws, ordinances, regulations, order or other decree, whether by himself, his 
employees or his subcontractors, or which may arise out of or resulting from operations under this 
Contract.  This clause shall apply not only during the term of this Contract, but also as to any claim, 
liability, or damages which are based on the Contractor’s conduct during the term of this contract 
and in the event the City is charged with the responsibility, jointly or severally, for the 
aforementioned conduct as a successor to the Contractor.   

 
F. INSURANCE 
 
The Contractor shall obtain and maintain the following insurances.  
 
1. WORKER COMPENSATION INSURANCE 

 
The Contractor shall provide and maintain during the life of this Contract, Worker Compensation 
Insurance for all of its employees, who are employed in connection with the work; and in case the 



RFP - Residential Recycling Collection Services                                                                        Page 6 of 7 
 

work is sublet, the Contractor shall require the subcontractor similarly to provide Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance for all the latter’s employees, unless such employees are covered by the 
protection afforded by the Contractor.  In case any class of employees engaged in hazardous work 
under this Contract are not protected under the Worker’s Compensation Statute, the Contractor shall 
provide and shall cause each subcontractor to provide adequate insurance coverage for the 
unemployment compensation protection of his employees not under or otherwise protected. 

 
2. PUBLIC LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE INSURANCE 

 
The Contractor shall provide and maintain during the life of this Contract, at its own expense, such 
public liability and property damage insurance as shall protect the contractor and any subcontractor 
performing work covered by this Contract, from claims for property damage, which may arise from 
operations under this Contract, whether such operations be by himself or by a subcontractor, or 
anyone directly employed by the contractor or subcontractor, and the amount of such insurance shall 
be as follows: 

 
Comprehensive General Liability Insurance:  Also know as “Broad Form”, covering general 
insurance, including but not limited to contractual products and completed operations and person 
injury, in an amount not less than Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) for injuries, including 
accidental death to any one person, and subject o the limit for each person, in an amount not less 
than Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) each occurrence and property damage insurance in an 
mount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence.  In all such policies, the City 
shall be named as an additional insured at no cost to the City.   
 
Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance:  The Contractor will provide coverage for all owned 
and non-owned vehicles in an amount not less than Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) for injuries, 
including accidental death to any one person, and subject to the limit for property damage insurance 
in an amount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence.  In all such policies, 
the City shall be named as an additional insured at no cost to the City. 

 
3. PROOF OF INSURANCE 

 
The Contractor shall furnish the City Manager, prior to the start of any operations under this 
Contract, satisfactory proof of coverage of the insurance required with an insurance company 
satisfactory and acceptable with the city.  No policy is acceptable to the City which can be canceled 
or changed by the insurer in less than thirty (30) days after the insured has received written notice by 
certified mail of such cancellation provision of the policy.  To be acceptable to the city, each 
insurance certificate shall contain a clause substantially as follows: 
 
“The policies referred to herein provide that they cannot be cancelled or changed by the insurer in 
less than thirty (30) days after the insured has received written notice by certified mail of such 
cancellation and equal notifications to the City.” 
 
Should the contractor fail to provide such insurance, the City may secure the same, the cost of which 
shall be reimbursed to the City by the Contractor. 

 



RFP - Residential Recycling Collection Services                                                                        Page 7 of 7 
 

SECTION 5 
PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL 

 
Submittals must provide all of the information requested in this RFP.  The information shall be 
presented in the same order as indicated herein. Proposals are to be printed double-sided.  Each proposal 
shall be contained within a three (3) ring binder. 
 
Each proposal shall contain:   
 

• Transmittal letter – include a transmittal letter providing the company name, the name of the 
person that is binding the company to its proposal, and the individual’s address, telephone 
number, and email address. 

 
• Responses to the Special Terms and Conditions—Minimum Requirements for Qualification 

and Evaluation.  This separate section contains detailed instructions and forms that must be 
completed and included in the proposal. 

 
• Rates for Collection Service--Each proposal must include the rates for collection service 

 
Each proposer must submit one (1) original marked ORIGINAL and three (3) copies marked COPY of 
their proposal in a sealed envelope.  The envelope should be labeled “Residential Recycling Collection 
Services” and marked with the Proposer’s name and address. The Proposals may be mailed or delivered 
to: 
 
    City of Lake Alfred 

Ameé Bailey, City Clerk 
155 E. Pomelo Street,  
Lake Alfred Fl. 33850 

 
 

PROPOSAL PRICE PAGE 
 

SERVICE       PRICE 
 
Prices for Collection Service (Per Month Per Dwelling Unit) 
 
 Recyclable Materials     $ ___________ 
 



1 | P a g e  
 

City of Lake Alfred, Florida 
2015 Residential Recycle 

 
Pre-Bid Meeting 

July 23, 2015 @ 2:30 pm  
City Hall 

 
A MANDATORY pre-proposal meeting was held on Thursday, July 23, 2015 at 2:30 p.m. at the Lake 
Alfred City Hall, 120 E. Pomelo Street, Lake Alfred, FL.  
 
Attendance:  
 
Companies Present: Waste Not, Trash Taxi, Republic Services, Advance Disposal, and Progressive 
Waste.  Please see attached sign-in sheet for more information. 
 
Staff City of Lake Alfred: Public Works Director John Deaton, Public Works Superintendent Mike 
Davis, and City Clerk Ameé Bailey. 
 
Public Works Director John Deaton gave a brief overview of the bid request and meeting format.  The 
City of Lake Alfred is soliciting proposals from qualified companies that are interested in providing 
curbside collection services for residential recyclable materials in the incorporated areas of Lake 
Alfred.  The Commission and citizens are accustomed to using a sixty-five (65) gallon recycling 
container. Sealed proposals will be received in the Office of the City Clerk August 10, 2015, prior to 
10:00 am and the bid opening will be held directly after in City Hall. 
 
Questions regarding this proposal must be in writing and must be sent to Ameé Bailey, City Clerk, via 
email at abailey@mylakealfred.com or via fax at (863) 298-4440.  All questions must be received by 
July 31, 2015, prior to 3:00 p.m. 
 
Attendees were given an opportunity to ask questions. 
 

1. Waste Pro sent an email which was read by the City Clerk.   
Proposal Submittal - on page 7 of the proposal it states that ‘Responses to the Special Terms 
and Conditions – Minimum Requirements for Qualifications and Evaluation.  This separate 
section contains detailed instructions and forms that must be completed and included in the 
proposal.’  We are not able to locate this separate section containing the questions and forms. 
Can you please advise as to where this document can be located? 
 

Response:  The Minimum Requirements for Qualifications and Evaluation section was removed 
and is not applicable. 

 
2. Duration of Contract - page 3 references a three year term and page 4 says up to three years.  

Please confirm the intent. 
 

Response:  Item 1 on page three refers to the initial term of the contract which will be three years.  
Item 3 on page 4 refers to the extension beyond the initial contract which may be up to three years 



2 | P a g e  
 

at one year intervals.  If all three extensions were granted the total contract period could be six 
years. 
 
3.  Rate Increase or Rate Decrease – Item 1 mentions annual petition but item 2 states the bid 

prices shall remain firm for the thirty-six (36) months of this contract. Please clarify the 
opportunity for rate changes. 
 

Response:  The irate for the initial 3 year contract will remain the same.  Both parties may request 
changes at the optional annual extension. 
 
4. Several sections refer to Franchise fees.  Is there a franchise fee to this contract? 

 
Response:  There are franchise fees within the city.  However there are no Franchise Fees 
associated with this contract. 

 
5.  Disposal of Refuse – page 5 states the City will not be responsible for disposal fees charged by 

the county or other disposal operator.  What refuse is this section referencing? Who currently 
handles the refuse? 
 

Response:  This section refers to any refuse that a customer may accidently or inadvertently place 
in the recycle bin that is then picked up by the contractor.  The current contract is with Republic 
Services. 

 
6. Would the City consider and alternate contract period or type of container. 

 
Response:  Contractors must provide a bid based on the current scope to be considered.  The City 
would review any alternate proposals, however the City would not consider a container smaller 
than 65 gallon container or changes in the initial contract duration. 

 
7. What is the current participation level for residential recycling? 

 
Response:  The participation rate is approximately 70-80%. 

 
8. What day of the week is recycling pick-up? 

 
Response:  The current recycling pick-up day is Thursday, however the City is open to any 
weekday pick-up.  Sanitary waste is picked-up three days a week, but recycling pick-up should not 
interfere with sanitary pickup. 
 

Questions received after the meeting: 
 

9. Page 4 of 7 B. Rate Increase or Rate Decrease 2: With reference to the CPI language will the 
City please consider to use the Bureau of Labor and Statistics Consumer Price Index for All 
Urban Consumer: Water, Sewer and Trash Collection Services for the rate increase?  The 
Water, Sewer and Trash CPI Index is more relevant to the services our industry provides.  The 
CPI urban wage index relates to the measurement of goods and services purchased for 



3 | P a g e  
 

consumption by the reference of the population (food, housing, apparel, transportation, medical 
care, recreation, education).   
 

Response:  Yes, the City will use the CPI for Urban Consumer: Water, Sewer and Trash Collection 
Services rather than the urban wage earners and clerical workers. 

 
10. Page 3 of 7 - 3.  Will the City please delete the requirement that the analysis be prepared by a 

CPA according to GAAP detailing the City of Lake Alfred? 
 

Response:  No, a CPA should prepare the annual financial statement. 
 

11. Insurance: Section 4 (F), Page 7-8: Will the City please consider the following change on the 
insurance section? 
 
 Delete the words “satisfactory” in second line, subsection 3, Page 8;  
 Insert the words “reasonably” before the words “acceptable” in third line, subsection 3, 

Page 8;  
 Delete the words “or change” in fourth line, subsection 3, Page 8;  
 Delete the words “certified” in fifth line, subsection 3, Page 8;  
 Replace the words “The policies referred to ……. to the City” with the words “ Certificate 

of Insurance will be supplemented by the Notice of Cancellation endorsement that will 
provide a thirty (30) day written notice in the event of cancellation of insurance coverage” 
in second paragraph, subsection 3, Page 8. 

 
Response:  No, the insurance requirements will not be changed in the scope of services. The City 
would consider specific insurance requirements during contract negotiations with the successful 
bidder.   

 
12. Acceptable Waste; Unacceptable Waste: Will the City include a detailed description of the type 

of waste the Contractor will collect and dispose of, along with definitions for waste that the 
Contractor will not collect or dispose of such as hazardous/ unacceptable wastes?  These 
definitions will provide clarity and responsibility for hazardous/unacceptable wastes.  
 

Response:  Generally, recyclable materials mean those materials which are capable of being 
recycled and which would otherwise be collected/processed as residential solid waste.  At a 
minimum these items include the following;  newspaper including inserts, magazines, catalogs, 
phone books, aluminum, plastic containers, glass, gable-topped containers, corrugated cardboard, 
steel cans, etc.  However, the contractor will be responsible disposal of any items collected in the 
recycle bins.  The Contractor is also responsible to aide in educating citizens on property recyclable 
materials.  Educational materials could include stickers on the containers, mailers, information for 
the City website, etc. 

 
13. Will the City accept that the Contractor has the ability to reject any unacceptable/hazardous 

waste provided by any residential? 
 



4 | P a g e  
 

Response:  Yes, the contractor is not required to pick-up non-recyclable materials placed in a 
recycle bin.  However, once collected the materials are the responsibility of the Contractor. 
 
14. Title to Waste:  Will the City agree that title to and liability for any hazardous/unacceptable 

waste will not pass to the Contractor at any time? 
 

Response:  The City will not be responsible for any hazardous materials collected by the 
contractor. 
 
15. Force Majeure:  Will the City allow the Contract to include the concept of force majeure so that 

the Contractor’s performance is excused for events outside its control and that unexpected 
occurrences such as severe weather conditions, strikes, labor disputes, change in law, excess 
debris resulting from storm or other acts of gods, etc. should qualify as events of Force 
Majeure? 
 

Response:  The City would consider force majeure during contract negotiations with the successful 
bidder.   
 

 
16. Termination:  Will the City allow language in the Contract for the Contractor to terminate the 

Contract upon Customer’s breach after Customer has the opportunity to cure that breach within 
a certain number of days? 

 
Response:  The City would consider alternate termination language during the contract negotiations 
with the successful bidder.   
 

 





LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 17, 2015 

 
4.) BID PROPOSAL: BUCHANAN BUILDING DEMOLITION 
 

 
ISSUE: The City Commission will consider bids for the demolition of the recently acquired 
Buchanan Building. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Bid Summary & Detailed Bids. 

 
ANALYSIS: Following the property swap with the University of Florida and the acquisition of the 
Buchanan Building staff proceeded with obtaining bids for demolition in order to prepare of the 
site for marketing and eventual redevelopment consistent with the Downtown Master Plan and 
the City’s recently created Community Redevelopment Agency. The City received the following 
bids for the demolition of the building and the clearing of the property:  
 
 ASAP Solutions Inc $  60,530.00 
 OSH Environmental $  58,500.00  
 Tucker Paving Inc. $283,528.59 

 
City staff has reached out to the Central Florida Development Council (CFDC) staff for 
assistance and feedback in generating a marketing package for the property. Depending upon 
the desired redevelopment outcome, brokers or other representatives recommended by the 
CFDC may have the opportunity to present these packets at commercial retailer conferences to 
assist in the marketing and eventual redevelopment of the property. 
 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Award the bid to OSH Environmental for the demolition of the 
Buchanan Building in the amount of $58,500. 
 



City of Lake Alfred 
BID SHEET 

 

Date: July 2015 Requesting Department: Public Works 

Purchase Order: Amount of Purchase: Approx. $ 60,000.00 

G/L Code:   

 

Equipment or items being purchased: 

Demolition of Buchanan Building 

 

 

Names of companies and their quotations: 

Company Name Person Contacted Amount 

1. ASAP  $ 60,530.00 

2. OSH  $ 58,500.00 

3.Tucker  $ 283,528.59 

 
Staff recommends:  purchase from OSH for $58,500. 
OSH was the lowest bid. 

 

 

 

Approval Requirements:  

Department Director Date: 

City Manager Date: 

 



A SAP SOLUTION, INC.
15 LIND AVENUE
KISSIMMEE, FL 34744

Quoted to:
CITY OF LAKE ALFRED
155 EAST POMELO STREET
LAKE ALFRED, FL 33850

Quotation
Quote Number:

20151040

Quote Date:
Jul 13, 2015

Page:
1

CustomerID Good Thru Payment Terms Sales Rep

CITYLA 8/12/15 C.O.D.

Quantity
1.00DEMO

1.00

1.00

Item Description
DEMOLITION, REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL
PF A 28,560 SQ. FT. WAREHOUSE per
PSHA AND NESHAP REQUIREMENTS.
~REDIT FOR METAL SALVAGE TO BE
K:APPED AT
** ESTIMATE METAL SALVAGE TO
~RING APPROXIMATELY $10K - $12K
~T RECYCLER. RATHER THAN A CREDIT
~E WOULD PROPOSE TO HAVE A
~ECYCLING COMPANY PLACE THEIR
~ONTAINER ON SITE FOR THE
~ECYCLING OF METAL AND ISSUE
PAYMENT DIRECTLY TO THE CITY OF
LAKE ALFRED. TOTAL DEMOLITION
COST WITH NO CREDIT $58,250.

Unit Price
72,530.0C

12,000.OC

Subtotal

Sales Tax

Total

Extension
72,530.00

-12,000.00

60,530.00

60,530.00



 
 

OSH Environmental 137 Beatty Rd. Babson Park, FL. 33827 – (863) 537-7134 p   (863) 638-7940 f 

                                                                      

  1 of 2 Friday, May 15, 2015 

 
STRUCTURAL DEMOLITION & SALVAGE PROPOSAL 

______________________________________________________            Proposal#: 15-49 

  

OSH Environmental would like to offer the price of $58,500.00 final competition  60 days to perform 

the demolition and disposal services described below at “100 W. Cummings rd.  lake Alfred, Fl. “  

  

 

SCOPE: 
 Complete demolition of (1) commercial Warehouse & (1) SFR w/brick vault,  slab and foundation’s  as 

discuss on 5/13/15  

  All scattered site concrete within property lines 

 Shallow buried metallic propane tank and a septic tank   

 Utility caps as required 

 Legal disposal and or recycling of razed materials  

 Filing of 10 day notification of demolition to FL DEP 

  Demolition Permits 

 Erosion Control as needed 

 
 

EXCLUDES: (we can perform all excluded items at additional cost if required) 
 Temporary Fencing  

 Removal in right-of –way 

 Removal of hazardous or contaminated materials soils 

 Well abandonment 

 Buried Items other than specified above  

 Fee associated with the power company on relocating power items if required. 

 

 

LINE ITEMS: 

 

1. The ability to crush process and sell the recycled material from the site with 6 months period to 

complete crushing and sale of recycled materials. Deduct ($8,500.00)  from above base bid -  total 

$50,000.00  - 180 days competition 

2. Exporting - Loading , hauling & disposal of fill dirt under slab  $12.00 per cubic yard we estimate 2000 

cubic yards of material to be exported 

3. Spreading dirt uniformly through site  $7,000.00 flat 

4. Stock piling  fill dirt and selling from site no cost to the city if 180 days is granted  

 

 

 

OSH will retain all savage materials including but not limited to the standup fork lift in warehouse and 

it charger,  all metals, HVAC units, copper, tubing, electrical wiring & all items remaining in Structure   

 

The credit applied to the overall demolition cost was $29,500.00  

 

$28,000.00 credit for metals & $1,500.00 for the forklift & charger. 

 



To: Contact:City Of Lake Alfred John Deaton

Demolish Buchanon BulidingProject Name: Bid Number: 15-2322

Fax: 863-298-4440Lake Alfred, FL  33850

Address: 155 East Pomelo Street Phone: 863-298-5458

Project Location: Bid Date: 7/28/2015

UnitItem Description Estimated Quantity

1.00 LSMOBILIZATION

1.00 LSMAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

1,150.00 LFSEDIMENT BARRIER

1,150.00 LFTEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION FENCE

10.00 EACHREMOVE TREES

1.00 LSREMOVE ROOF SYSTEM (BIG BLDG)

2,550.00 SFREMOVE ROOF (OFFICE BLDG)

25,145.00 SFREMOVE BLOCK WALLS

3,112.00 SYREMOVE BLDG PAD (16" CONC)

3,097.00 SYMISC. SLABS (6" AVG. CONC.)

734.00 SYREMOVE ASPHALT

1.00 LSBALANCE SITE

10,000.00 SYSEED & MULCH

$283,528.59Total Bid Price:

Notes:

• Please Note:

· City of Lake Alfred to supply Scrap Metal dumpsters to be loaded by TPI. Lake Alfred to keep all metal from roofsystem / trusses only.
· All other metal conduit, rebar, and pipe will become the property of TPI.

• Included in Proposal:

· SWPPP Permits only & Monitoring
· Tree Removal
· All Maintenance of Traffic per FDOT 600
· Dust Control & Final Clean up

• Not Included in Proposal:

· Permits &  Permit Fees
· Landscaping & Irrigation
· Asbestos Removal
· Relocation/Removal/Repair Of Existing Or Unknown Utilities, Underground Tanks, Septic Systems (Except As Listed In Proposal)
· Well Abandonment
· Relocation/Removal/Repair Of Power Poles Or Guy Wires
· Excavation/Backfill Of Building Foundation And/Or Footers
· Removal Of Muck/Contaminated/Unsuitable Soils Or Materials
· Over Excavation
· Storm/ Sewer System
· Potable Water System
· Fireline Water System
· Materials / Work / Services not indicated or listed.

Page 1 of 27/28/2015 4:27:43 PM



 

FOR SALE: 

Vacant Commercial Property 

Shovel-Ready and City-owned Downtown location 
100 West Cummings St, Lake Alfred, FL 33850 

Property Overview 
 
Ideal commercial retail location in 
heart of Lake Alfred’s downtown, 
with double US Highway 17/92 
highway frontage, and access 
from Cummings and Columbia 
Street. City is eager to see this 
property developed 
 
Lot Size: 1.6 acres 
 
Zoning:  
C-2 Commercial Retail (City)  
 
Utilities:  
City of Lake Alfred water/sewer 
Central Florida Gas  
Tampa Electric 
Bright House  
Verizon  
 
Average Daily Traffic Counts: 
US 17/92 (Lake Shore/Shinn): 26,000 
 
Frontages: 
US 17/92 (Lake Shore): 254 ft 
US 17/92 (Shinn): 249 ft 
Cummings: 313 ft 
Columbia: 278 ft 
 
Location:  
Downtown Lake Alfred  
Polk County 
 
10 minutes from Interstate 4 AND 

US Highway 27 
2015 Community Snapshot: 
 
Total Population: 59,438 
Total Households: 24,284 
Median Age: 44.7 
Median Household Income: $45,443 

1.6 Acres 
Commercial Retail  



 
 
 
 
 
  

City of Lake Alfred 
Polk County, Florida 
 

Positioned near the employment centers of
Lakeland, Winter Haven and metro Orlando to the
east, Lake Alfred boasts access to big-city jobs and
urban amenities. Approximately 5,000 people live
within the city limits, but within a 10-minute drive (or
just 5 miles), over 59,000 people have easy access
to the community.  

 

A 2015 Retail Opportunity Gap identifies a $228
million sales opportunity for all retail sales, eating,
drinking establishments and services. 

 

US Highway 17/92 and County Road 557 provide
easy access to major transportation routes such as
Interstate 4 and US Highway 27. Downtown traffic is
approximately 26,000 vehicle trips per day.  

  

Included in this proposal: 

 1) Site Zoning Map 

 2) Driving Distances from Downtown Lake Alfred 

 3) 2-3-5 Mile Radii around Downtown Lake
Alfred 

 4) Polk County Impact Fee Moratorium 

 

Quick Facts  

Within 10 minutes, or 
5 miles of Downtown 
Lake Alfred: 

 

Total Population 

       59,438 

 

Workforce Population 

24,043 

 

Average Household 
Income 

$45,443 

 

Households 

24,284 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Move and Expand Your Business Here 
 



(/(/

(/ (/

13
,00

0

13
,00

0
SHINN BLVD

LA
KE

 SH
OR

E 
WA

Y S

CUMMINGS ST W

COLUMBIA ST E
COLUMBIA ST W

CUMMINGS ST E

BUENA VISTA DR S
HARBORD ST W

BUENA VISTA DR S
1717

92 92

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,
USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS
User Community

CITY OF LAKE ALFRED
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

155 E. Pomelo St.
Lake Alfred, FL 33850
Phone: 863-291-5720

Prepared by: City Clerk
Path: F:\GIS\Data\LakeAlfred\MXDs\Buchanan.mxd

Date Saved: 8/12/2015 10:52:23 AM

Data Sources: 
City of Lake Alred

FDOT and Polk TPO
Polk County Property Appraiser

Zoning Map

0 60 120 18030
Feet

DRAFT

©
Legend

Property = 1.59 ac

R-1A - Single Family Dwelling

R-1 - Single Family Dwelling

R-2 - Multi-Family Dwelling

C-2 - Retail Commercial

C-3 - General Commercial

Unassigned

AADT (2015)13,000



4567

(/(/
(/ (/

èéëìí

èéëìí

èéëìí

èéëìí

èéëìí

èéëìí

#S

13
,0

00

9,0
0

0

2
8

,5
0

0

3,500

16,700

1
3

,0
0

0

Lake Alfred

Lake Rochelle

Lake Echo

Lake Cummings

Lake Swoope

Lake George

Lake HainesPIERCE ST W

HAINES BLVD E

BU
EN

A 
VIS

TA
 D

R 
S

MACKAY BLVD

LAKE GEORGE RD

HAINES BLVD W

OAK ST E

RA
MO

NA
 AV

E N

ALFRED DR E

LO
CK

 ST

JAMES CIR

RI
CK

LY
NN

 AV
E

WI
NO

NA
 AV

E 
S

DA
KO

TA
 AV

E N

HWY 92 W

GOODMAN AVE S

PARK LN E

LA
KE

 SW
OO

PE
 D

R 
N

PIN
E D

R

TWIN LAKE BLVD

INTERLOCK ST

ECHO DR S

557

1717
92 92

CITY OF LAKE ALFRED
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

155 E. Pomelo St.
Lake Alfred, FL 33850
Phone: 863-291-5720

Prepared by: City Clerk
Path: F:\GIS\Data\LakeAlfred\MXDs\Traffic Info.mxd

Date Saved: 8/12/2015 11:32:40 AM

Data Sources: 
FDOT  and Polk TPO

Polk County Property Appraiser

Traffic Information Map

0 720 1,440 2,160360
Feet DRAFT

©
Legend
èéëìí Traffic Signal (02)

Property = 1.59 ac

LA_Transitional

LA_Downtown_Core

AADT (2015 Polk TPO)

Streets 

6-Lanes, Two Ways

4-Lane, Two Ways

3-Lane, One Way

2-Lane, One Way

2-Lane, Two Ways



Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, USGS, Intermap, increment P Corp., NRCAN,
Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri (Thailand), MapmyIndia, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

CITY OF LAKE ALFRED
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

155 E. Pomelo St.
Lake Alfred, FL 33850
Phone: 863-291-5720

Prepared by: City Clerk
Path: F:\GIS\Data\LakeAlfred\MXDs\Regional Map_Drive Time.mxd

Date Saved: 8/12/2015 4:44:55 PM

Data Sources: 
City of Lake Alfred

FDOT

Drive Times from Site

0 8,400 16,800 25,2004,200
Feet

DRAFT

©
Legend

5 Minutes 10 Minutes 15 Minutes

Lake
Alfred

15
-Minutes

10
-Minutes

5-M

inutes



Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, USGS, Intermap, increment P Corp., NRCAN,
Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri (Thailand), MapmyIndia, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

CITY OF LAKE ALFRED
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

155 E. Pomelo St.
Lake Alfred, FL 33850
Phone: 863-291-5720

Prepared by: City Clerk
Path: F:\GIS\Data\LakeAlfred\MXDs\Regional Map.mxd

Date Saved: 8/12/2015 11:21:39 AM

Data Sources: 
City of Lake Alfred

FDOT

Radii Map Around Downtown

0 6,000 12,000 18,0003,000
Feet

DRAFT

©
Legend

1 Mile

3 Miles

5 Miles

Lake
Alfred

5-M
ile

3-M

ile



POLK

LAKE ORANGE

OSCEOLA

PASCO

SUMTER

HERNANDO

HILLSBOROUGH

SEMINOLE

Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, USGS, Intermap, increment P Corp., NRCAN,
Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri (Thailand), MapmyIndia, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

CITY OF LAKE ALFRED
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

155 E. Pomelo St.
Lake Alfred, FL 33850
Phone: 863-291-5720

Prepared by: City Clerk
Path: F:\GIS\Data\LakeAlfred\MXDs\Regional Map.mxd

Date Saved: 8/11/2015 1:14:59 PM

Data Sources: 
Florida Department of Transportation
Polk County Property Appraiser

Regional Map

0 21,000 42,000 63,00010,500
Feet

DRAFT

©
Legend

FL Counties

Property = 1.59 ac

Lake Alfred



 
 

IMPACT FEE MORATORIUM 
 

There is currently a moratorium on the Correctional, Transportation, Emergency Medical 

Services (EMS), Fire Rescue, Law Enforcement, Library and Park Impact Fees until 

12/31/2015.  (Please see reverse regarding Educational System Impact Fees) 

 

To qualify for the moratorium: 
 A complete building permit application must be submitted on or before 

12/31/2015.   

 The building permit must be issued within six months, or by 6/30/2016.  Permit 

applications which are not approved within six months of application date are 

subject to cancellation.    

 The Certificate of Occupancy (CO) must be issued within 24 months of permit 

issuance or no later than 6/30/2018. 

 

IMPACT FEE REINSTATEMENT 
 

On April 7, 2015, the Board of County Commissioners voted to reinstate the 

Correctional, Transportation, Emergency Medical Services (EMS), Fire Rescue, Law 

Enforcement, Library and Park Impact Fees in two phases. 

 

 Phase 1 (Effective January 1, 2016) 
 

To qualify for Phase 1 impact fee rates: 
 A complete building permit application must be submitted on or before 

12/31/2016.   

 The building permit must be issued within six months, or by 06/30/2017.  Permit 

applications which are not approved within six months of application are subject to 

cancellation. 

 The Certificate of Occupancy (CO) must be issued within 24 months of the permit 

issuance or no later than 06/30/2019. 
 

Phase 2 (Effective January 1, 2017) 
 

The Phase 2 rates apply for building permits applications received on or after 01/01/2017.  
 

(Please see reverse for additional information). 

 



Educational System Impact Fees 
 

Fee Increase on August 1, 2015 
 

On 08/01/2015, the Educational System Impact Fees will increase as follows:   
 

Land Use Category Rate 
Single-Family Detached $4,403/dwelling unit 

Multi-Family $2,812/dwelling unit 

Mobile Home Park $3,654/space 

Mobile Home $3,654/dwelling unit 
 

 For new residential construction to be eligible for the current lower rates (those in 

effect prior to 08/01/2015), a complete building permit application must be 

submitted on or before 07/31/2015. 

 The building permit must be issued within six months or by 01/31/2016.  Permit 

applications which are not approved within six months of application are subject to 

cancellation. 

 The Certificate of Occupancy (CO) must be issued within 24 months of the permit 

issuance or no later than 01/31/2018. 

 

Fee Increase January 1, 2017 

 

The following Educational System Impact Fees apply to all building permits applications 

received on or after 01/01/2017: 
 

Land Use Category Rate 
Single-Family Detached $5,242/dwelling unit 

Multi-Family $3,348/dwelling unit 

Mobile Home Park $4,243/space 

Mobile Home $4,243/dwelling unit 
 

 

For more details, please refer to Ordinance 2015-14 located on the BoCC’s website 
http://www.polk-county.net/boccsite/Doing-Business/Impact-Fees-Rate-Schedules/ 

 
 

http://www.polk-county.net/boccsite/Doing-Business/Impact-Fees-Rate-Schedules/


Commercial Retail Real Estate Companies

Florida, Central Florida and Polk County

Participants at ICSC Florida Annual Conference

 AMSCOT CORPORATION

7‐ELEVEN, Inc.

ABC LIQUORS

ADVANCE AUTO PARTS

ALDI, Inc.

BEALLS

BEALLS OUTLET STORES

BIG LOTS!

BODY CENTRAL

BRAVO SUPER MARKETS

BURGER KING

BURGERFI

CHIPOTLE MEXICAN GRILL

CIRCLE K STORES, Inc.

COMTERRA DEVELOPMENT (Public stores and other retail)

CVS/PHARMACY

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

DOLLAR TREE

DUNKIN’ DONUTS

FALLAS/NATIONAL STORES, INC.

FAMILY DOLLAR

FIREHOUSE SUBS

GOLDEN CORRAL

GREAT CLIPS, INC.

HAIR CUTTERY

HAIR CUTTERY

HIBBETT SPORTS

HUNT REAL ESTATE (specializes in retail development)

IGA

JERSEY MIKES SUBS

MARILYN MONROE CAFÉ FRANCHISE

MCDONALDS USA

OFFICE DEPOT

PALMETTO CAPITAL GROUP (Dollar General & other retail development)

PANDA RESTAURANT GROUP, INC. (Panda Express)

Page 1 of 2



Commercial Retail Real Estate Companies

Florida, Central Florida and Polk County

Participants at ICSC Florida Annual Conference

PARTY CITY RETAIL GROUP

PETCO

PETERBROOKE CHOCOLATIER

PINCH‐A‐PENNY POOLS & SPAS

PRIMEGROUP (hotel developer)

PUBLIX SUPER MARKETS

RACETRAC

SALON LOFTS

SAM’S CLUB

SAVE A LOT FOOD STORES

SEARS HOMETOWN STORE

SEDANO’S SUPERMARKETS

SPERRY VAN NESS (commercial retail estate)

STARBUCKS COFFEE

SUBWAY

TERVIS TUMBLERS

THE KRYSTAL COMPANY

THE UPS STORE

THE WENDY’S COMPANY

TIJUANA FLATS BURRITO COMPANY

WALGREENS

WALMART

WaWa

ZAXBY’S

Page 2 of 2


	Inhouse Option.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4

	updated Buchanan marketing packet_anb.pdf
	info cover
	2nd page




